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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members of
Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 40" Annual Report on the busine_ss and operations of
the Company together with the Audited Financial Accounts for the year ended 31° March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

{Amount in Rs.)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Profit before exceptional items and tax 6,39,54,742 8,91,53,157

Less : Provision for taxation 1,47,81,391 2,31,32,300

Profit after taxation 4,91,73,351 6,60,20,857

Other Comprehensive Income -84,73,70,199 1 1,01,26,42,362
Balance brought forward from Previous year ~4,95,20,94,292 | 3,87,34,31,073

4,15,38,97,444 | 4,95,20,94,292

Appropriations

Income Tax Adjustments 4,616 -

Surplus carried to balance sheet and OCI 4,15,38,92,828 | 4,95,20,94,292

4,15,38,97,444 | 4,95,20,94,292

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Your Company has recorded a profit after tax of Rs. 491.73 Lakhs as against Rs. 660.21 Lakhs recorded
in the previous year.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Your Directors are hopeful of a better performance during the current financial year too.
DIVIDEND

Considering the need for ploughing back the available resources into the business, your Directors do
not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

RESERVES

Your Directors have not proposed any amount to be transferred to General Reserve for the year under
review.

Meetings of Directors
Board Meeting
During the year 2021-22, the directors were met Five times inter-alia to review the operations of the

company and to discuss the financial results as well as the future business plans / strategy of the
company. The board meetings were held on 29/06/2021; 13/08/2021; 12/11/2021; 14/02/2022 and
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DIRECTORS

Presently, the Board has Two Independent (Non-Executive) Directors and One Nen-Independent
{Non-Executive)} Director.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A statement on Declaration by Independent Directors under sub-section {6) of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is attached with the report as a separate annexure.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review the company has related party transaction as disclosed in the Annual
Accounts.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (C} OF SUB SECTION (3) OF SECTION
134 OF THE COMIPANIES ACT, 2013

The Directors herehy confirm:

(i) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period ;

{iii) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and irregularities ;

(iv) That the directors had prepared the annual accounts for the period ended March 31, 2022
on & going concern basis.

(v) That proper internal financial control have been laid down and followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

(Vi)  That proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
AUDITORS

The present Auditors, M/s. Ray & Co., Chartered Accountants, {Firm Registration No. 313124E) who
was appointed for 5 years from the financial year 2019-20, are eligible to continue as Statutory
Auditors for the financial year2021-22 and have conveyed their eligibility and willingness to continue.

AUDITORS' REPORT

The comments by the Auditors in their report are self explanatory and in the opinion of the Board do
not require any further clarification.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The Secretarial Auditor, K. C. Khowala, Company Secretary have carried out the Secretarial Audit for

the year ended March 31, 2022 as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the audit report is
attached to this Directors Report. There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer
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DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public or others during the year under review.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration of/or in excess of the
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION-OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The Com'pany is not carrying on any manufacturing activities, hence information regarding
conservation of energy and technology absorption is not furnished.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture and Associate Companies as per details
given in'the Annual Accounts.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company has not given any loans or guarantee for loans taken by others under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and aiso not made any investments beyond the limits prescribed under the
aforesaid section during the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Foreign Exchange earnings Wil
Foreign Exchange outgo Nil

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration Committée of the Board comprising three directors out of which
not less than one - half are independent as per the requirement of the act and has formulated the
palicy for appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and determination of remuneration
including the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes independence of a director and
other matters as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of
the Policy, the non-executive directors and the independent directors shall not receive any
remuneration, as well as they have wave their sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and its
Committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee in place with three directors as its members. The
Audit Committee had met four times during the year under review.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3){a} of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended vide The Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2017 (notified on 31* July, 2018) the extract of the annual return is placed in the
web address of the Company at:
MGT-9-Extract-of-Annual-Return 2022-1.pdf {kusumindustrialgasesltd.co.in}
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APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to express their gratitude to the Shareholders, Bankers, Employees and all other
well-wishers for their continued support and patronage.

For and on behalf of the Boar

Place : Kolkata
Dated :the 28" day of May, 2022




Annexures to the Directors Report
Annexure |
Particulars pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

As the Company'’s activities do not involve, by and large, any significant level of energy consumption,
no comments are necessary in respect of energy conservation and reduction of energy consumption.
In any event, continuous efforts are made to conserve energy to the extent possible.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

As per Form B given as hereafter

FORM - B

Disclosure of particulars with respect to technology absorption forming part of the Directors’ Report
for the year ended March 31, 2022

Technologies absorbed:

Research & development {R & D)

1 Specific areas in which R&D was carried out
by the Company : NIL
2. Benefit derived as a result of the above R&D : N.A.
3. Future plan of action : None
4. ExpenditureonR & D : N:A,
5. Technology absorption, adaptation : Constant efforts are made by

the Company to develop cost-

effective new systems/technologies.
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Foreign exchange earning - Nil
Foreign exchange outgo - Nil
CIF Value of Imports - Nil

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Kolkata
Dated : the 28" day of May, 2022

Chairman




Annexhre i
Statement on declaration given by the independent director under sub-section (6} of section 149 of
the Companies Act, 2013

The Board comprises two [ndependent Directors who have submitted declaration in individual capacity
as follows:

() He is an Independent Director and a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and
experience;

(é) (i) He is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company;
(i) He'is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company;

(¢) He has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years
or during the current financial year;

(c) None of his relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per
cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as
may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or
during the current financial year;

(¢) He neither himself rior any of his relatives—

{i} holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the current financial year;

{ii} is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years
immediately preceding the current financial year of—

(A )a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its
holding, subsidiary or associate company; or

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding,
subsidiary or assotiate company amounting to ten per cent or more of the gross turnover
ofsuch firm;

{iii} holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total voting power of the
campany;

or
{fv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organisation that
receives twenty-five percent or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters,

directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two percent or more of the
total voting power of the company.

et
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2022 of Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN:- L23201WB1983PLC035668
i) Registration Date: 11/01/1983

iii) Name of the Company Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.
iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company: - Public Limited Company

V) Address of the Registered office and contact details P-46A, Radha Bazar Lane, 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700001
Ph: (033) 4051 3000 ; Fax: (033) 4051 3326
web-site : www.kusumindustrialgasesltd.co.in
e-mail : kusumindustrial@gmail.com

vi) Whether listed company (Yes/No) Yes - CSE Limited
vii)  Name, Address and Contact details of Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd.
Registrar and Transfer Agent 3A, Auckland Place ,7th Floor, Room No.7A & 7B, Kolkata -700017

Ph.No.-(033) 2280-6616 to 6618

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. [Name and Description of main products [NIC Code of the  [% to total turnover
/ services Product/service of the company

1 Other Financial Activity K8 100.00

I11.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

HOLDING/ % of Applicab
SUBSIDIARY / [shares le
ASSOCIATE held Section

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
SI. No. COMPANY CIN/GLN

As per the Balance Sheet




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total during the
Shares Shares year

A. |PROMOTERS
(1) |Indian

a) Individual / HUF 63000 238000 301000 25.347 63000 238000 301000 25.347 0.000
b) Centran Government

c) State Government

d) Bodies Corporate 47480 333300 380780 32.065 47480 333300 380780 32.065 0.000
€) Banks / Financial Institutions

) Any Other
Sub-total (A)(1) 110480 571300 681780 57.412 110480 571300 681780 57.412 0.000

(2) |Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals

b) Other - Individuals

c) Bodies Corporate

d) Banks / Financial Institutions

e) Any Other
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000
Total Shareholding of Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 110480 571300 681780 57.412 110480 571300 681780 57.412 0.000

B. |PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / Financial Institutions

c) Central Governments
)
)

d) State Governments

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Foreign Institutional Investors (FII)
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (Specify)

Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000

Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 451988 0 451988 38.062 451938 0 451938 38.057 -0.005
ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding nominal share
capital upto Rs 1 lakh 19372 34380 53752 4.526 19422 34380 53802 4.531 0.005
i) Individual shareholders holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs 11

¢) Others Specify

1.NRI

2. Overseas Corporate Bodies

3. Foreign Nationals

4. Clearing Members

s

5. Trusts

6. Foreign Bodies - D.R.

Sub-total (B)(2) 471360 34380 505740 42588 471360 34380 505740 42588 0.000
Total Public Shareholding (B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 471360 34380 505740 42.588 471360 34380 505740 42.588 0.000

C. |Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

[~ [GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 581840 605680 1187520 100.000 581840 605680 1187520 100.000 0.000




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
B. Shareholding of Promoters

Sl No. [Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % of change in
No. of Shares % of total shares of % of Shares No. of Shares | % of total shares | % of Shares | during the year
the pany Pledged! b of the company | Pledged/enc
ed to total shares umbered to
total shares
1|ANKIT CREDITS PVT. LTD. 117380 9.884 0.000 117380 9.884 0.000 0.000
2|ANKIT GUPTA 65000 5474 0.000 65000 5474 0.000 0.000
3|AVANTIKA GUPTA 59000 4.968 0.000 59000 4.968 0.000 0.000
4|ENERTECH ENGINEERS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. 57200 4817 0.000 57200 4.817 0.000 0.000
5|P P GUPTA (KARTA OF HUF) 59000 4.968 0.000 49000 4.126 0.000 -0.842
6|PADAM PRAKASH GUPTA 59000 4.968 0.000 59000 4.968 0.000 0.000
7|RAJ PRABHA GUPTA 59000 4.968 0.000 69000 5.810 0.000 0.842
8|RAJ PROJECTS PVT. LTD. 114980 9.682 0.000 114980 9.682 0.000 0.000
9|TECHNO LEASING & FINANCE CO. PVT. LTD. 91220 7.682 0.000 91220 7.682 0.000 0.000
TOTAL 681780 57.412 0.000 681780 57.412 0.000 0.000




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
C. Change in Promoter's Shareholding

Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
the year the year
SI No.|Name
% of total shares % of total shares
No. of shares of the company No. of shares of the company
1|ANKIT CREDITS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 117380 9.884
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 117380 9.884
2|ANKIT GUPTA
a) At the Begining of the Year 65000 5474
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 65000 5474
3| AVANTIKA GUPTA
a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4.968
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968
4|ENERTECH ENGINEERS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 57200 4.817
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 57200 4817

o

P P GUPTA (KARTA OF HUF)

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4.968

b) Changes during the year

Date  Reason

30/06/2021 Transfer -10000 0.842 49000 4.126

c) At the End of the Year 49000 4.126
6|PADAM PRAKASH GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4.968

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968
7|RAJ PRABHA GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4.968

b) Changes during the year

Date  Reason

30/06/2021 Transfer 10000 0.842 69000 5.810

c) At the End of the Year 69000 5.810
8|RAJ PROJECTS PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 114980 9.682

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 114980 9.682
9| TECHNO LEASING & FINANCE CO. PVT. LTD.

a) At the Begining of the Year 91220 7.682

b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]

c) At the End of the Year 91220 7.682

TOTAL 681780 57.412 681780 57.412




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.

D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holder of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl. |For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of | C Shareholding during
No. the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
1|AARKAY INVESTMENTS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 42700 3.596
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 42700 3.596
2|ASCU HEAT PUMPS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 41490 3.494
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 41490 3.494
3|BRIGHTSUN TRACON PRIVATE LIMITED.
a) At the Begining of the Year 58300 4,909
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 58300 4.909
4|GREEN TEAK AGRO PROCESSORS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 25060 2.110
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 25060 2.110
5|J.P. FINANCIAL SERVICES PVT LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 58800 4.951
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 58800 4.951
6|NOBLE COMMUNICATIONS PVT LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 53000 4.463
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 53000 4.463
7|SURAKSHA PODDAR
a) At the Begining of the Year 7355 0.619
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 7355 0.619
8|T M COMMERCIALS PVT. LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4,968
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968
9| TECHNO INTERNATIONAL LTD
a) At the Begining of the Year 55820 4.701
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 55820 4.701
10| VARANASI COMMERCIAL LTD.
a) At the Begining of the Year 50000 4.210
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 50000 4.210
TOTAL 451525 38.023 451525 38.023




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LTD.
Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. No. [Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding |
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the shares shares of the

company company

1|AVANTIKA GUPTA

a) At the Begining of the Year 59000 4,968
b) Changes during the year [NO CHANGES DURING THE YEAR]
c) At the End of the Year 59000 4.968

TOTAL 59000 4.968 59000 4.968




VI

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits | Total Indebtedness
Indebtedness at
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0
ii) Interest due but 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0
Change in
* Addition 0 0 0 0
* Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 0 0
Indebtedness at
i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0
ii) Interest due but 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Amount
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions - - - - -
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - - - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - - -
2 Stock Option - - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - - -
4 Commiss|as % of profit NIL -
ion -
others specify - - - - -
5 Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (A) - - - - -

Ceiling as per the Act

Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board

Commission

Others, please specify

Total

Total (1)

NIL

o|lo|o|o

Other Non-Executive

Fee for attending board

Commission

Others, please specify

Total

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

oO|O|O0|O




VILI.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. no.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Brief
Description

Section
of the
Compan
ies Act

Details of Penalty /

imposed

Punishment/ Compounding fees

Authority
[RD/
NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty |

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty |

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty |

Punishment NIL

Compounding




K,.C. KHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM NO.MR -3
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd
P-46A, Radha Bazaar Lane, 4'" Floor
Kolkata-700001

West Bengal

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Limited (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

27, Weston Street, 2. Floor, Room No.: 205, Kplkata- 700 012.
@h: 033-22114023, (M) 9831025638.
E-Maif: kfiowalake_S@fotmail com




K,C.KHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (There were no events / instances during the Audit
Period which attract the applicability of the Regulations);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008 (There were no events / instances during the Audit Period which
attract the applicability of the Regulations);

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(There were no events / instances during the Audit Period which attract the applicability
of the Regulations);

(vi) All other laws applicable to the company in general. However, no Industry specific law is
applicable to the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Calcutta Stock Exchange.

During the audit period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The Company was required to appoint a Company Secretary to ensure compliance with the provision of
Section 203 0f the Act, 2013 read with Clause 47 (A) of the Listing Agreement.

2. The Company was required to appoint Key Managerial Personnel i.e. Chief Financial Officer to ensure
compliance with the provision of Section 203 of the Companies Act,2013.

| further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Directors.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
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K, C. KHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

¢) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded, if any, as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the Audit Period, the Company had not gone through any specific events

having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance to the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms as an
integral part of this report.

gt

/,6 KHe K. C. Khowala
o 2\ Company Secretary in practice
Place: Kolkata s E\, ACS No. 4695
Date:20" June , 2022 » i ! CP No. 2421

7595 " UDIN: A0046950000510310
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K, C.KHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

“Annexure A"
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Limited for the financial year ended March 31,
2202)

To,

The Members,

Kusum Industrial Gases Limited
P-46A, Radha Bazaar Lane, 4" Floor
Kolkata-700001

West Bengal

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit pactices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for a opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules, regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

K. C. Khowala

=

ATT(H y \ Company Secretary in practice
Place: Kolkata % X ACS No. 4695
Date: 20™ June , 2022 ( o E CP No. 2421
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K,C.KHOWALA

(Practicing Company Secretary)

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015)

To,

The Members,

M/s Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.
P-46A, Radha Bazaar Lane, 4™ Floor
Kolkata-700001

West Bengal

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Kusum Industrial Gases Ltd.having registered office atP-46A, Radha Bazaar Lane,
4th FloorKolkata-700001, West Bengal (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance
withRegulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to meby the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on 31 March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, New Delhi or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr.No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
in Company
1. | Mr.RAJIV AGARWAL 00056650 0971172009
2. | Mr DINESH PARAKH 00057091 30/09/2002
3. | Ms AVANTIKA GUPTA 03149138 06/08/2012

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuityof every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

u\,\mﬁﬂ*
—— K. C. Khowala
L\___f;-‘f,-‘\‘.__(‘; _ Company Secretary in practice
Place: Kolkata [ Co (4 ACS No. 4695

Date: 20" May , 2022 =\ 0,/ CP No. 2421
' : § S~y S UDIN: Arvyere Doso RSY0272
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Chartered Accountants Shakespeare Court
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Date : 28.05.2022

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kusum Industrial Gases
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2022 and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the cash flow
statement and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Act 2013(*Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS®) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31% march’2022, and its profit, (including Other

. Comprehensive Income), its cash flows and changes in Equity for the year ended on that

date.

Basis for opinion

3.

4.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ( ‘ICAT’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. we believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of those standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinioz o
these matters. ((,3 / 2RI
\a) S
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5. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. '

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the
other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements,

7. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flow of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing these standalone financial statement, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matter related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management wither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process. '

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemesn i




or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
-company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate
with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify diring our audit. We also provide those
charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regard_ing, among other matter, '
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
on dependence, and where applicable, related safeguard.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

14. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report), Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of Sec 143 of the Companies
Act,2013 we give in“Annexure A” to this Report, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

15. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
accompanying standalone financial statements;

b) in our opinion,- proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c¢) the standalone of financial statements dealt with and cash flow statement dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,2022
from being appointed as a Director in terms of the Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) As required by section 197 (16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits lid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. '

g) we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31.03.2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated
June’2021 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified opinion; and

h} With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule,2014 ( as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information according to the explanation given us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position as at 31% March 2022;

ii. the company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022; and




iii. there has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31%
March 2022

16. According to the information and explanation given to us an on the basis of test checks
carried out by us during the course of audit of the Company, our reports on the matters
specified in para 3A and 3C of the Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Companies
Auditors’ Report (Reserve bank) Direction, 2016 are as follows :

i)

iii)
iv)

The Company is an Unregistered Core Investment Company (CIC) in terms of the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) notification no. DoR (NBFC) (PD) CC.
No.117/03.10.001/2020-21 dated 13 August 2020 and is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA. of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for not accepting
any public deposit;

the Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year;

The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income
recognitions, income on investment, accounting for investment, Indian accounting
standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as
applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial company —Non-systemically
important Non-Deposit Taking Company (Reserve bank) directions,2016;

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
classified as a NBFC Micro Finance institution (MFI) as defined in the Non-
Banking Financial Company Non-systemically important Non-Deposit Taking
Company (Reserve bank) directions,2016.

Qar Ray & Co

M no. 051205
UDIN- 22051205ACZ14085

Place : Kolkata
Date: 28.05.2022




ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of KUSUM
INSDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAAR ENDED 31.03.2022

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we
repoit that:

i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

" (B) The Company does not have any intangible assets Accordingly, the provissions of the clause
3 i(a)(B) of the order are not applicable. -

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company does not have any immovable properties including investment
properties so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets both during this year so this clause is not applicable.

(e) According to information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the company. :

i) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause are not
applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Therefore, this clause is not applicable. ‘

jii) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, the Company has made investments in
mutual fund during the year amounting to Rs. 5,25,000.00 to ABSL Mutual Fund on 4" October’2021.

(2) The company has not provided any loan or provided advances in the nature of loan, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firm, LLPs or any other parties so this clause is not applicable.

(2)(A) The company has not provided any loan or provided advances in the nature of loan. Therefore, this
clause is not applicable. -

(B) In view of the above clause (iii) (a) (A) this clause is not applicable.




(b) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company has made investments in -
shares and mutual fund and granted loans during this year which are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(¢) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, there is no amount which is overdue
for more than 90 days in respect of loan granted to such companies, firm, LLPs or other parties.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, no amount is overdue for more than 90 days. Therefore the provisions of-
clause 3 (iii)(e), 3 (iii)(f) of the order are not applicable.

iv) The relevant provision of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and security are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv)
of the order are not applicable. ’

v) The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rule, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi) To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of
cost record pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act’2013 and Rule made for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vii) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, amount deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees® state insurance, income tax, sales tax, goods and
services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have
generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding on the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable. .

(b) There is no dues in respect of income-ta, sales-tax, goods and service tax, duty of custom and
duty of excise that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
' viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the
books of accounts.

ix) (a) The Company has not been taken any loan or other borrowings or in the payment of interest’
" thereon to any lender. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (ix)(a) to (ix)(f) of the Order are not
applicable. '

x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument). Accordingly,
provisions of paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable. :

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.




xi) (a) According to information and explanation given to us, to the best of our knowledge and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) No case or report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been committed
to.be filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year

xii) (2) The Unit is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a) to (iii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

xiif) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard.

xiv) (a) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by the statutory
auditor.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

xvi) (a) The company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) so this clause is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) so this clause is not
applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and the company is an
exempted CIC and fulfil both the criteria of a CIC as define in the regulations made by the reserve Bank
of India.

(d) The company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) and has 21 companies are part of this group.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the has no cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
year. Therefore, this clause is not applicable.

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there has been no resignation of the statutory anditors during the year.

xix) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
there exists material certainty as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the Balance Sheet. = Co




xx) (a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records, the Company has not transferred any unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VI to
Companies Act, 2013.

(b) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not undertaken any CSR Projects. Therefore, this clause is not applicable.

xxi) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records, the Company is not having any holding, subsidiary or associate Company and therefore this
clause is not applicable

For Ray & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place : Kolkata

Date ; 28.05.2022 M no. 051205

UDIN- 22051205AJUCZ14085




Annexure B to the Auditor’s Report
'Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
{“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31st March 2022, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company of as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls.

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by ICAl. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act. '

Auditors’ Responsihility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of
IFCoER, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based. on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financia! Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting-principles. A company's IFCoFR includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

, management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
a o




prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

. 7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the
risk that IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qpinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAL

For Ray & Co

Partner
M no. 051205
UDIN- 22051205AIUCZ14085

Place : Kolkata
Date : 28.05.2022




KLJSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
B2 LANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2022

Partner
M. No. 051205
UDIN: 22051205 ASVCETHOES

Kolkata
28 May, 2022

Avalan guse

Avantika Gupta |
DIN 03149138

{Rs. in Hundred)
" Particulars Note No. ) As at Asat
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021
ASSETS
{1} Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 6,959.81 7,519.13
{b) Capltal work-in-progress - -
{c) Investment Property - -
{d) Other Intangible Assets - -
{e) Financial Assets: 3
{} Investments 4,03,60,648.80 4,88,18,607.57
(i) Trade Recelvables - -
[iit} Loans - -
(iv) Others 2,340.10 2,340.10
{f) Deferred Tax Assets {net) 4 - -
(g} Other Non-Current Assets 5 160.10 354.00
(2} Current assets
{a) Inventorles - -
{b) Flmanctal Assets: 6
{l} Investments 14,77,474.89 9,81,334.94
{li) Trade Recelvables - -
{ill) Cash and cash equivalents 11,524.63 10,016.05
{iv) Bank Balances ather than {ili} above - -
{v) Loans - -
{vl) Other Financial Assets 1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
{c) Current Tax Assets (net) 7 0.06 598.73
{d) Other current assets 8 229.31 5,191.00
TOTAL ASSETS 4,19,60,337.70 4,99,26,962.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capltai 9 1,18,752.00 1,18,752.00
{b} Other Equity 10 4,15,38,928,28 4,55,20,942.92
Liabilities
{1) Nan-current liabllitles
{a) Financlal Liabillties:
{i} Borrowlings - -
{ity Trade Payables - -
(it} Other financial liabilities - -
{b) Pravisions - -
{c) Deferred tax liabllitles {net) 4 2,81,067.42 2,64,934.00
{d) Other nan-current liabilitles - -
{2) Current Habllities
(a) Financlal Liabilities:
(i} Borrowlngs - -
{ii) Trade Payables - -
(iii) Other financial liabiitles - -
{b) Other current liabilitles 11 590.00 1,333.60
{c) Provistons 12 21,000.00 21,000.00
(d) Current Tax Liabtlities (net) 13 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,19,60,337.70 4,9%,26,962.52
Significant accounting policies and notes to 1
financial statements
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Ray& Co.
Firm Registration No. 313124E \‘
gdpccountants W .
r 4 \\ng‘%rwa]
DIN 6650
Directors




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND 1055 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Rs. In Hundred)
Particulars Note No. Yearended Year ended
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I Revenue from operations - -
1. Other income 14 6,45423.91 8,96,957.23
. Total Income (1411} 6,45,423.91 8,96,957.23
1’8 Expenses
Cost of materlals consumed - -
Purchases of stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-In-progress - -
Employee beneflts expense - -
Finance costs - -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 559.32 718.32
Other expenses 15 5.317.17 4,707.34
Total Expenses {IV) 5,876.49 5,425.66
V. Profit before exceptlonal items and tax {I11-1V) 6,39,547.42 8,91,531,57
Vi, Exceptional lterns - -
VIIl.  Prafit/ {loss) before tax {V-Vl) 6,39,547.42 8,91,531.57
VIIl. Tax expense:
[1} Current tax 1,47,423.71 2,30,892.81
MAT Credit Entitlemnent - -
{2} Deferred tax ' 390.20 430,19
X, Profit/ {loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VI1) 4,91,733.51 6,60,208.57
X. Profitf {loss) for the perlod from discontinued operations - -
Xl Tax expense of discontinued operations - -
XIl.  Profit/ {loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI) - . . . .
XNt Profit/ {loss) for the period {(X+XI1) . - 4,91,733.51 6,60,208,57
X, Other Comprehensive Incame:
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss [84,57,958.77) 1,03,47,141.27
(i) Income tax relating to Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 15,743.22 2,20,717.65
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
{1} Income tax relating to ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
XV. Total Comprehensive Income for the period (X1+XII)
{Comprising Profit (Loss) and Gther Comprehensive Income for the period) (79,50,482,04} 1,12,28,067.49
XVI. Earning per equity share {for cantinuing operatlon):
(1) Basie 16 41.41 55.60
{2) Dituted 16 41.41 55.60
XVIl.  Earning per equity share {for discontinud operatlon):
[1) Baslc - .
[2) Diluted - -
XVIll. Earnlng per equity share {for discontintted and continuing operation):
{1} Basie 4141 E5.60
{2) Dituted 41.41 55.60
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date Far and an behalf of the Bpard
For Ray & Co,
Firm Registration No, 313124E
Chartered Accountants.
Directors

_ SHEC &Y

46 051205 _#gmd:&a %o&

ubin: 22051205 F\:’S\JCZTSHO&S Avantika Gupta
. DIN 03149138

Kolkata
28 May, 2022




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/amortization on continuing operation
Net gain/{loss) on sale of Current Investments

Net Unrealised gain/{loss) on Fair Valuation of Mutual Fund

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital ;

Increase/{decrease)} In other payables
Decrease/{increase) in other Non current assets
Decrease/{increase) in other current assets

Cash generated from / {used In) operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash flow from / {used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from sale/{purchase} of current investments {Net)
Decrease/{increase) in long-term loans and capital advances
Net Cash flow from / {used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Net Cash flow from / {used in} financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease)} In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts
Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

As per our report of even date
for Ray & Co.

Firm Registration No. 313124E
Chartered Accountants

rifd Roy
Partfier
M. No. 051205
UDIN: 2Z@5\1205 ATV 2T L4088
Kolkata
28 May, 2022

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
{Rs. in Hundred) (Rs. in Hundred}
6,39,547.42 8,91,531.57
559.32 718.32
(3,373.31) (11,614.21)
{52,766.65) (4,264.72)
5,83,966.78 8,76,370.,96
{743.60) 535.90
193.80 -

4,961.69 1,347.20
5,88,378.77 8,78,254.06
(1,46,870.19) {2,30,628.50)

4,41,508.58

6,47,625.56

(4,40,000.00) (6,49,224.12)
(4,40,000.00) {6,49,224.12)
1,508.58 (1,598.56)
10,016.05 11,614.61
11,524.63 10,016.05
9,975.91 8,457.53
1,548.72 1,558.52
11,524.63 10,016.05

For and on behalf of

/\ jiv Agarwal
DINBady 6650

—Ao:c.\.d&n&\ (&Y $

Avantika Gupta _|
DIN 03149138

e Board of Directors

Directors




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

2. Property, Plant & Equipment

{Rs. In Hundred)

Furniture and

Office

Electrical

Particulars Buildings Fixtures Equipments Air Conditioner Fittings Total
Gross Block

As at March 31, 2020 20,649.81 11,360.00 33,254.34 5,215,52 210.16 70,689,883
Additlons - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 20,649.81 11,360.00 33,254.34 5,215.52 210.16 70,689.83
Additions - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 20,649.81 11,360.00 33,254.34 5,215.52 210.16 70,689.83
Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31, 2020 15,806.27 10,246.43 31,439.11 4,752.19 208,38 62,452.38
Charge for the period 234.02 298,61 90,01 95.68 N 718,32
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 16,040.29 10,545.04 31,5258,12 4,847.87 208.38 63,170.70
Charge for the period 222.72 216,94 49,45 70.21 - 559.32
Disposal - - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 16,263.01 10,761.98 31,578.57 4,918.08 208.38 63,730.02
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2021 4,609.52 814.96 1,725.22 367.65 1.78 7,519.13
As at March 31, 2022 4,386.80 588.02 1,675.77 297.44 1.78 6,959:81




K&SUM INDUSTRIAL GASES LIMITED

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March, 31, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

{Rs. in Hundred)

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Changes during the year
Balance as at March 31,2022

1,18,752.00

1,18,752.00

B. Other Equity

General Reserve

Other
Comprehensive

Particulars on Amalgamation Retained earnings Income- equity Total
Instruments

As at March 31,2022%
Balance as at April 01, 2021 3,78,097.59 40,92,073.10 4,50,50,772.23 4,95,20,842.92
Profit for the year - 4,91,733.51 - 4,91,733.51
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of '
income tax - - (84,73,701.59) (84,73,701.99)
Transfer to Retained Earning - - - -
Income Tax For Earller Years - {46.16) - {46.16)
Balance at March 31, 2022 3,78,097.59 45,83,760.45 3,65,77,070.24 4,15,38,928.28
As at March 31,2021*
Balance as at April 01, 2020 3,78,097.59 34,31,864.53 3,49,24,348.61 3,87,34,310.73
Profit for the year - 6,60,208.57 - 6,60,208.57
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of|
income tax - - 1,01,26,423.62 1,01,26,423.62
Transfer to Retained Earning - . - - -
Income Tax For Earlier Years - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,78,097.59 40,92,073.10 4,50,50,772.23 4,95,20,942.92

*There are no changes in Equity Share Capital and Other Equity due to prior period errors.

For Ray & Co.
Firm Registration No, 313124E

M. No. 051205
UDIN

Kolkata
28 May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

\,

) -

\RiltwAgdrwal

DIN 00DgB650

Ao o GugSa

Directors

o

Avantika Gupta _|
DIN 03149138




KUSUM INDUSTRIAL GASES IMITED

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

1.‘5lgnlﬁcan; Accounting Policlas

o |

12

13

14

15

Overview of the Company

Kusum Industrial Gases tmited ["The company) Is a Core Investment Company {CIC) and does not require registration as per notificatlon no. DNBS.PDLCC, No.274/03.02.089/2011-12 deted 11th
May, 2012, As per the $aid notlfication, a Compaty having an asset size of more than Rs. 100 crores and less than Rs.500 ¢rores 2nd not accessing public funds Is exempt from reglstration as CIC-
NDSI with RBL

The company 1$ a public limited company Incorporated and domiciled In Indla and has Its reglstered office at P46A, Radha Bazar Lane, Kolkata - 70001, The company has Its primary listings on
Calcutta Steck Exchange.

In accordance with the notilication dated 16th February, 2025, Issued by the Ministey of Corporate Affakrs, the Company has adopted Indlan Accounting Standards {referred to as “Ind AS”} notlfied
under the Companles {Indisn Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) with effect from April 1, 2016,

Basls of preparation of Financial Statements
These finantfal statements have been prepated In accordance with tndlan Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basls except for certain financial

Instruments which are measured ot fair values; the provisions of the les Act, 2013 {'the Act') [to the extent notified) and guldelines Issued by the Securltles and Exchange Board of [ndla

P

[SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Sectlon 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companles {Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules Issued there after.
Accaunting polizles have been consistently applied except where a newly Issued accounting standard 1s initially adepted or a revislon to an existing accounting standard requires a change In the
accounting policy hitherto [n use.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified In narmal course due to the speclal nature of Industey, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Accardingly, all assets and [liabilities
have been classified as current or non-turrent as per the cperating cycle and other criterla set aut In IND AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financlal Statements’ and Schedula 1l te the Companies Act, 2013,
‘The Financlal Statements are presented In Indlan Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two declmal except otherwlse stated, The presentation and grouplng of individual ltems In the
halance sheet, the profit & loss statement and the cash flow statement, as well as the statement of changes In equity, are based on the principle of materlality.

Use of estimates and Judgments
The preparation of the financlal statements In conformity with IND AS requires o 1ent to make

Judgments and assumptions, These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect
the applicaticn of zreounting policles and the reparted amounts of assets and Eabllities, the disclosures of cantingent assets znd llabilitles at the date of the financial statements and reported
g estimates involving plex and subjective judgments and the use of

amaunts of revenues and expanses during the perled. The application of aceounting palicles that raquire eritical
assumptlons in these financlal statements have heen disclosed In Note no. 1.5, Accounting estimates could change from period to perfod. Actual restlts could differ from those estimates.

Apptapriate changes in estimates are made as management b aware of changes fnelr ees fing the: et Changas in estimates are reflected En the finenclal statements
In the period En which changes are made and, if material, thelr eifects are disclosed In the notes to the financial statements.

Estimation of uncertalnties refating to the globa! health pandemfe from Novel Coronavirus disease {COVID-19):

The Company has considered the pessible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-12 on the carrylng amounts of recelvables, unbilled 1 and Investment in shares and
securitles. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible futtre uncertalnties Tn the glabal i¢ condltiens because of this pandemle, the Company, s at the date of approval of these
financlal statements has used Internal and external sources of Informatlon Including credit reports and related informattan, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitlvity analysis on
the assumptions trsed and based on current estimates, expects the carrying amaunt of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 an the Company's financial its may dlifer
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financlal statements,

Critical Aceounting Estimates and Judgments

1.5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

1

On date of transitlon, the campary has adopted the optional ptlon in 'ee with IND AS 101 te measure Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE] ot fair value and assumption of the same as
deemed cost. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transltfon or construction and subsequent mpr 13 thereto less acel
depteciation and impalrment losses, If 2ny, Cost of acquisition Includes Enward freight, dutles and taxes {net of Cenvat availed), dismentling cost and installation expenses et Encurred upto the
Installation of the assets. An item of PPE Is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from use. Galn or Toss arlsing on dispasal o retirement of an ftem

af PPE Is determined as the difference hetween the sale procesds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised bn the statement of Profit & Loss.

Yabmed

Depreciation Is recognised on wiitten down value basls over the estimated vseful lives {or lease term, If shorter) In d with Schedule Il of the Companfes Act, 2013. Based cn the above,

useful lives as estimated for the assets considered for depreclation are as follows:
Categary Useful fife

Buildings

- Non-Factory Bullding {RCC Frame Structure) 60 Years

- Faetory Building 30 Years

Computer equipment

- Servers and networks 6 Years

- Others 3 Years

Furniture and fixtures, Electrical Installstion and Laboratary 10 Years

Equlpments

Office equipment 5 Years

Vehlcles

- Motor eycles, scooters and ether mopeds 10 Years

- Others 8 Years

1.5.2, Impalrment of Nen-financlal Assets

Assets are tested for Enpairment whenever events or changes In circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An Impalrment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrylng amount sxceeds [ts recoverable 2amount. The recoverable smotnt Is the higher on an asset’s fair value lass casts of disposal and value In use, For the purpase of assessing
Impairment, assets are grouped at the fowest levels for which there are separately Identiflable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets [cash-
g ing units), Non-financial assets that suffered anImpalrment are reviewed for pessible reversal of the impalrment at the end of each reporting perlod.

1.5.3 Financlal Instruments

A financial instrument ks any contract that glves rise to a financlal asset of one entity and a financlal llabllity or equity instrument of another entity.

[i} Flnancialassets
Recognition znd Initlal Measurement:
All financial assets are Initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provislons of the Instruments. A financial asset s Initlally measured at falr value plus, In the case of

financlal assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transactian costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.




Classification and Subsequent Measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financlal assets are classified In four categories:

o © Measured at Amortized Cost;

»  Measured at Falr Value Through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCH);

s Measured at Falr Value Through Pralit or Loss {FVTPL);

= Equity Instruments measured at Falr Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOC)). Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their Initial recognition, except if and In the
péried the Company ehanges [ts business model far managlng financlal assets,

= Measured at Amortized Cost: A debt Instrument is measured at the amartlzed cost if both the following candltlons are met:

+  The asset (s held withln a business model whose objective Is achleved by both collecting contractual cash flews; and

+  The contractual terms of the finanzial asset give rise on spectfled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and tnterest [SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

After initlal measurement, such financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effactive interest rate (EIR} method.

+  Measured at FVTOC!: A debt Instrument Is measured at the FVTOC! If bath the fellowlng conditlons are met:
= The cbjective of the business model is achfeved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financlal assets; and
- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPRL

Debt instruments meeting these criterla are measured Initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any galns or Josses arising on re-measurement
gnized In other ¢ hensive Income, except far impalrment gakns or losses and foreign exchange galns or losses. Interest calculated using the effactive interest method Is racognized in the

statement of profitand loss in investment ncome,

v Measured at FYTPL: FVTPL Is a residual eategory for debt Instruments. Any debt Instrument, which daes not mest the criterla for categorization as at amorntized cost or as FYTOCT, 15 classlfied
as FVTPL. [n additlan, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwlse meets amartized cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FYTPL, Debt Instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

s Equity Instrtments measurad at FVTOCH; All equity Investments in scope of Ind AS — 109 are measured at fair velue. Equity Instruments which are, held for trading are classifled as at FVTPL. For
all other equity Instruments, the cempany may make an irrevecable slectlon ta present In ether comprehensi bseq changes in the fair value. The company makes such electien on
an Instrument by Instrument basis. The classlfication Is made on Inltlal r ition and Is Irre ble, In case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCT, then afl falr value
changes on the Instrument, excluding dividends, are r fized In the OCI. There Is no recyzling of the amounts from OCl to PEL, even on sale of Investment.

Derecognition
The Company derecognlzes a financlal asset on trade data only when the contractual tlghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financlal asset and substantlalty all the
tisks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

impairment of Financlal Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basls the expected credit losses (ECL) in associates with Its debt Instruments carried at amortlsed cost and with the exposure atfsing from loan
commitments and other financlal assets. The company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each raporting date.

The ement of ECLreflects:

«  Anunblased and probability-welghted amount that Is determined by evaltating a range of possible outcames;

= Thetime value of meney; and

= Rea ble and ble Infi ion that ks avallable without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past avents, eurrent conditions and forecast of future econamlz conditions.

The measurement of the ECL allowance Is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptiens about future econemic conditions end credit bebaviour [e.p. the likelihood of
customer defaulting and the resulting losses).

Write-off policy
The Company writes off financial assets, In whole or part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has conducted there s no reasonable expactation of recovery.

fil)Financial Labllitles

Recognitlon and Initial Mcasurement:

Flnanclal llabilitles are classifled, at Inltlal recognition, as at falr value through profit or loss, loans and berrowings or payables, as appropriate, All financlal Datllitles are recognized Initially at falr
value and, in the case of [oans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement:

Financial liabilitles are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FYTPL, A financial [fabllity s classified as FYTEL If it is classified as held-for-trading, or it Is a derlvatlve or it 1s designated as such
on Initlal recegnition. Financial llabllitles at FYTPL are measured at falr value and net galns and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized In statement of profit or loss, Other financlal
[tabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective Intesest rate methed, Interest expense and forelgn exchange galns and losses are recognized in statement of profit or

foss. Any galn or loss on d goltlon Is also gnlzed in st Wt of profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financtal liabillity s derecognized when the obligation under the llability ks discharged o cancelled or expires.

Olfsetting financlal Instruments

Financlal assats and labifities are offset and the net amaunt reported [n the balance sheat when thare s a legally enforceabls right to offset the recoanized amoaunts and there 1s an intention to
settle on a net basls or realite the asset and settle the liabllity simulta [y. The legally enf ble right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and In the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

<<




1.5.4 Invéntorles
Stockin trade Is measured at Fair Value as per IND AS,

1.5.5 Revenue Recognltion
. Revenue [s measured at falr value of the consideration recelved or recelvable, R 1s recognlsed when {or as} the Compantes satlsfy a performance obligatien by transferring a promlsed goods
- orservice toa customer,

{1} Interest Income
Interest incame Is recegnised using the effectlve Interest rate.

{Ii) Dividend Income
Dividend Income iis recognised when the right to receive payment is established,

{1} Income from Envestment
Profit / {loss) earned from sale of securltles is recognlsed on trade date basis, The cost of securitles Is computed based on FIFO basls,

{iv) All other Income are accounted for on acerual basls unless otherwlse specifled,

1.5.6 Provisions, Contingent Uabilitles and Contingent Assets, legal or constructlve
{1} Provistans are recognlsed when there |s a present obligation as a result of a past event and It Is probable that an outtlow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and there 18 a rellable estimate of the amaunt of the obligatian, Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reperiing perfod, The discount rate used to determine the present value is 3 pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and tha risk specific to the llability. The Increase In the provision due to the of time Is recog d as Interest expense,

{11} A disclosure for contingent liabllities s made when there 1s a possible obligation arlsing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed enly by the accurrence or non-eccurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arlses from past avents where It [s either not probable that ap outflow of resources
will be required to settle or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot be made, When there Is a possible obligatlon or o present obligation and the llkelihood of outflow of resources s remote, no

pravislon or disclosure for centingent Batility Is made.
(iil} Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclased when an inflew of I benafits s probabl

1.5.7 Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and Intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as Current Investments, All other Investments are classifled as Long-term Investments. Under
IND AS, tnvestments are measured at falr value and accardingly, difference between the falr value and carrying value is recognlsed Tn the Statement of Profit and Less or recognised as Cther
Comprehensive Income,

1,5.8 Employee Benefits X
(i) Short term Employee benalits are accrued In the year services are rendered by the emplayees,
(i) Contributlon to defined contributien plans such as Provident Fund etc. [s being made kn accardance with the statﬁte and are recognized as and when incurred. Contribution to deflined benefit
plans conslsting of contributlon 1o gratuity are determined at ¢lose of the year at present value of the amount payable using actuarial valuation techniques, Actuarial galn and losses arising from

experlence adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptlons are recognited In other comprehensive Income, Other costs recognised En the St of Profit or Less,
are determined at close of the year at present value of the amount payable using actuarial valuation technlgues, The

[iii) Other long term employee benefits consisting of Leave
changes n the smount payable Including actuatial gain or lo<s are recegnised In the Statement of Profit or Loss,

1.5.9 Taxcs on Income
Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

fi) Current Tax
Current tax |5 measured on the basls of estimated taxable lncome for the current accounting periad In accordance with the applizable tax rates and the previsions of the Inceme Tax Ast, 1961 and

other appllcabla tax faws,

[H} Dclerred Tax

Deforred Tax assets and liabilities 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the pericd when the asset Is realited or the Habllity Is settled based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have
been dorsub ively ted by the end of the reporting perlad,

Delerred tax Is recognized In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and llabilltles for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amaounts wsed for
taxation purposes [l.e., tax base). Deferred tax Is also recognized for carry forward of upused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that 1t I$ probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and upused tax losses can be utllized.

The carrying amount of deferted tax assats is reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod. The Company reduces the carrylng amount of a deferred tax asset 1o the extent that it s no longer
probable that sufficlent taxable prafit will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entlre deferred tax asset to be wtillzed, Any such reduction Is reversed to the extent that It becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss Is recognized elther In other comprehensive Income or In equity.

Deferred tax assets and llabilitles are offset when thers Is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax Habllities and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Company Entends to settle its current tax assets and liabllities on a net basls.

1.6 Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby prafit for the year Is adjusted for the effects of transactions of 2 non-cash nature, any deferrals or aceruals af past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and ltem of Income or expenses assoclated with [nvestlng or finanzing cash flows. The cash flows fram operating, Investing and financing activities of the Company are
sepregated. The Company considers a1l highly liquld Investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

1.7 Earnlngs per Share
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the welghted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the eifects of potential equity shares by the welghted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year plus the welghted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares Into equity shares,




[FS

(U]

a

Néne Current Einanelal Atsets
[} Investments

Investments falr value through Other Comprehensive tncome

a, Equity Shares [Quoted}
Ballarpur Industries Ltd, {£.V. Rs. 2}
Checons Ltd.

Golden Tobaceo Ltd

GTL Infrastructure Ltd,

Motaroel Speclality Gils Ltd,

Natlenal Steel & Agro Industries Ltd,
Nextgen Anlmation Media Ltd.
Octal Credit Capital Ltd.

Roafit Industries Ltd,

Sitverline Technologies Led.

Sun Earth Ceramles Ltd.

Techno Electric & Engg. Co, L1d. {F.V. R, 2}

b. Equity Shares {Unquoted)
Others (%]

Anklt Credits Pvi. Ltd.

Teloljan Techna Agro Ltd

Blnani Zne Ltd.

Deserve Vincom Pyt Ltd.

Direction Barter Pyt Ltd,

Enertech Engineers {Ij Put. Ltd,
Gagan Realdey Pvt. Ltd,

Green Teak Agro Processars Pvt. Ltd,
Horlzon Vintrade Pyt Ltd

MaJestlc Commaotrade Pyt Ltd
Navyug Infracon Pt Ltd,

North Dinajpur Power Ltd

Plnnacle Commaodeal Pyt Ltd

Raj Projects Put. Ltd,

Saffron Enclave Pvt. Ltd.

Techno Birbhum Green Power Generating Co, Ltd
Techna Internstional Ltd

Techna Leasing & Finance Co. Pvt. Ltd
Techno Power Projests Ltd

Varanasl Commerclal Ltd

Varun Resources Ltd (#}

Varun Global Ltd (#)

Total

Aggregate Amount of
Quoted Investments
Unquoted Investments

Investments measured through FYTOCE

{*} The breakup value of unquoted shares have been taken as on 31.03.2019.

Asat Asat
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

R, (In Hundred) Re. [fa Hundred)
Holding Value Holding Value
6,000 69,00 £,000 63.00
6,500 1,430.00 6,500 1,430.00
49,091 45,728.27 49,091 19,587.31
20,611 308.17 20,611 164.89
5,03,905 2,267.57 5,03,505 2,267.57
10,000 443.00 10,000 365.00
600 10,68 600 10.68
1,00,000 40,000.00 1,00,C00 4,680.00
100 4,60 w00 4,60
3,500 76.65 3,500 76,65
100 130 100 130
1,45,91,000 3,61,49,202.50 1,45,91,000 4,47,72.483.50
3,62,39,542.74 4,48,01,134.50
2,080,000 25,060.00 2,00,000 25,060.00
9,09,900 96,176.43 9,09,500 94,174.65

1,811 . 1,811 -
11,00,000 1,04,170.00 11,00,000 1,05,600,00
11,400,000 1,03,230,00 11,00,000 1,05,270.00
58,000 17,220.20 58,000 17,562.40
11,00,000 1,04,060,00 11,00,000 1,05,450.00
18,500 1,840.75 1B,500 1,822.25
24,22,500 2,39,827.50 24,22,500 2,40,069.75
7,22,500 71,527.50 7.22,500 71,672.00
51,000 4,488.00 51,000 4,426.80
3,00,000 30,030.00 3,00,000 24,810.00
22,72,500 2,24,977.50 22,72,500 2,25,204.75
72,000 13,435.20 72,000 13,596.80
2,28,000 2,34,817.20 2,28,000 2,21,935.20
3,00,000 24,810.00 3,00,000 24,860.00
9,650,000 2,49,696.00 9,60,000 2,51,504.00
2,09,500 2,45,305.00 2,058,500 2,02,565.55
48,500 1,22,845.65 48,500 94,511.95
3,30,400 21,82,126.80 3,30,400 21,65,474,64
1,70,732 16,7569.86 1,70,732 16,769.86
42,683 4,192.47 42,683 4,192,47
41,21,106.06 40,17.473.07
4,03,60,648.80 4,88,18,607.57
3,62,39,542.74 4,45,01,134.50
41,21,106,06 40,17.473.07
4,03,60,648.280 4,88,18,607.57

4,03,60,648.80

4,88,18,607.57

{#) Pursuant to the Compasite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Judlcature at Bambay, shares of Varum Resources Umited & Varun Global
Limited has been Issued and allotted for the erstwhile Varun Shipping Company Umited. The shares of the company are yet to ba listed.

[ii) Others

Other Advances recoverable fn cash or kind- considered goad

MAT Credlit Entltlement

Deferred Tax AssctsfLiabllitics (net)

The balance comprises temporary dliferences attributable to:

Deferved Yax Liabilltles

Difference between hook value of depreclable assets as per books of account and written

down value for tax purposes

Tax Impact on Fair Value of Investments
Net Deferred Tax Uabllitles

Other Non-Current Assets
Security Deposit

Current Financlal Assets

{il Investments

Investments at falr value theaugh Proflt & loss
a. Mutual Funds funquoted)

ABSL Floatings Rate Fund - Dir, - G
ABSL Low Duration Fund - Dir. - G
ABSL Overnight Fund - Dir. -6

Aggregatle Ampunt of
Unquoted Investments

Investments measured through FYTPL

Asat Asat

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Rs. fin Hundred}) Rs. {In Hundred)
2,340.10 2,340.10
2,330,10 2,340.10
{2,382.47) [2,772.67)
2,83,449.89 2.67,706.67

2,81,067.42 1,64,934.00
160.10 354,00
150&0_ 354.00
Asat Asat
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Holding Value Holding Value

Rs. {in Hundred) Rs. [in Hundred)
72,820.730 4,21,217.88 72,829.730 4,02,071.16
3,68,846.250 10,45,860.95 2,10,282.569 5,69,200.01
904.253 10,396,068 904.253 10,083.77
14,77,474.83 9,81,334.94
14,77.474.89 .81,334.94
14,77,474.85 9,81,334.94
14,77,474.89 9,81,334.94

3
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a)

b)

t)

d)

{ll} Cash and Cash Equivatents

Balances with banks in Current Accounts
Cash on hand

(i} Others
Other Advances recaverable n cash or kind- consldered doubtiul

Current Tax Assets {net
Income Taxes

Other Current Asscts
Prepald Expenses
Other Recelvables

Equity Share Caplital
Capltal $tructure

Authorised
13,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/+ each
{Previous Year 13,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- ezch)

Issued, Subseribed and Fully Pakd Up
11,87.520 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous Year 11,687,520 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each)

Share Capltal Reconclllation
Equity Shares

Opening balance
1ssued during the perlod
Closing Balance

Particulars of Equity Shareholders hotding more than 5% Shares ot Balance Sheet date

Anklt Gupta

Ankie Credits Pyt Ltd,

Ra] Projects Py, Ltd,

Techno Leasing & Finance Co. Pvt. Ltd.
Raj Prabha Gupta

The above shzrehalding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
Shares held by promoter at the end of the year

Ankit Gupta

Avantika Gupta

P P Gupta [Xarta of HUF)

Padam Prakah Gupta

Ra) Prabha Gupta

Ankit Credits Pvt, Ltd,

Enertech Enginaers 1) Pvt Ltd

Raj Projects Pvt. Ltd,

Techno teasing & Finante Co. Py, Ltd.

Terms of Issue of nqultly shares

Asat Asat
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Rs, {In Hundred} Rs. {in Hundred}
9,5975.91 8,452.53
1.548,72 1,558.52
11,524.63 10,016.05
—- = 1
1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
0.05 599.73
0.05 5£59.73
12.00 11.00
21731 5,180.00
229.31 5,191.00
S
Asat As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Rs, {in Hundred} Rs. {in Hundred)
1,20,000,00 1,30,000,00
1,30,000.00 1,30,000.00
- e
1,18,752.00 1,18,752.00
1,18,752.00 1,18,752.00
e e o
31 March 2022 31 March 2023
Nos. Amount - Rs. [' 00) Nos. Amount - Rs. {* 60}
11,587,520 1,18,252.00 11,87,520 1,18,752.00
11,87,520 1,18,752.00 11,87,520 1,18,752.00
31 March 2022 31 Marth 2021
Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
65,000 5.47 65,000 547
1,17,380 9.88 1,17,380 .88
1,14,980 9.68 1,14,980 9.68
91,220 7.68 91,220 7.68
69,000 581 65,000 58L
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
65,000 547 65,000 547
59,000 4.97 55,000 497
459,000 4,13 45,000 413
. 59,000 4,97 59,000 497
69,000 581 69,000 5.81
1,17,38¢ 9,88 117,380 9.88
57,200 4.82 57,200 4.82
1,14,980 9.68 1,14,980 968
91,220 7.68 91,220 7.68

The Company has only one class of shares refeered to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 10. Each holder of equity share [s entitled to one vote per share. 'In the event of liquidatian, the
equity sharehelders are eligible to recelve the remalining assels of the Company, after distrlbution of all preferentlal amount, In proportion to thelr shareholding.

Ha shares have been reserved for Issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/dlsinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

The Campany has nat allotted any shates as fully pald up pursuant to contract{s) without payment being received In cash er by way of fully pald banus shares nor has bovght back any shares during

the pariod of flve years Immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet s prepared.

No convertible securities have been issued by the Company during the year.
No calls are unpald by any Director and Q4flcer of the Company during the y=ar.

The Carmpany has not forfelted any shares.




Othor Equity

{1} General Reserve on Amalgamation
Balance b/t

(ii) Retalned Earnings

Balance at the béginning of the reperting period
Add: Income Tax Ad]ustments

Add: Total Income In accardance with IND AS
Add: Trznsfer from 0Q1 ’

Nat Surplusf/{Defich) at the end of the year

{Ils} Other Comprehensive Income
Bdlance at the beginning of the year
Add: Investments carried at FVTOC!
Less: Transfer to retalned earnings

Equity instrument through other comprehensive Income

Description of nature and purpose of cach reserve

General Reserve an Amalgamation

General Reserve on amalgamatlon represents the reserve created on amalgamatlon undergone by the company In the nature of merger,

Retained Eaming
Created aut of accretlon of prafits,

Other Comprehensive Income

Asat Asat

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Rs. {In Hundred) Rs. (In Hundred)
3,28,097.59 3,78,097.59
40.92,0'4"3.10 34,31,864.53

(46.16) .
4,91,733.51 6,60,208.57
- 45,83,760.45 49,92,073.10
4,50,50,772.23 3,49,24,348.61
[84,73,701.99) 1,01,25,423,62

3,65,77,070.24

4,50,50,772.23
——— e —

4,15,38,928.28

4,95,20,942.92

The Compaay has elected to recognilse changes In the falr value of cetaln Invastment in equity securltles Tn other comprehensive Inceme. These changes are accumulated within the FYTOC! equity

Investments reserve within equity. The Company transfers amaunts frem this reserve to retalned earning when the securitles are derecognised.

11 Other Current Liabllitles

Other payables
Statutory Dues Payables
Others Payables {Year end accruals [or expenses)

Current Provisions
Provislon for deubtful advances

Current Tox Lahllities {net}

Provislon for Encome Tax [net)

14 Otherincome

Net galn/{lass) on sale of Current Investments
Rental Income

Dividend Income from Non-current investments
Unrealised Galn on Mutual Fund [nvestments
Interest Income on Loan

interestincome- others

Sundry Balances W/ Off

Other Expenses
Advertlsement expenses
Auditors’ Remuneratlon

~Audit Fees

~Tax Audit Fees

-Certification Fees
Electricity expenses
Corporation Taxes
Listing Fees
Malntenance Charges of Building
Miseellanenus expenses
Prefessional charges
Rates & Taxes

Asat As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Rs. {In Hundred) Rs. {in Hundred)
40,00 30.00
550.00 1,303.60
590.00 1,333.60
21,000.00 21,000.00
21,000.00 21,000.00
3,373.31 11,614.21
5,83,640.00 8,75,460,00
52,766.65 #4,264.72
5,600.00 5,600,600
4395 13.30
6,45,423.91 8,96,957.23
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Rs. (in Hundred} Rs. [in Hundred)
3058 231.84
47200 47200
177.00 55.00
2165 58,10
343.90 243.90
295,00 ..
1.002.00 1,000,30
222.24 134.83
2,424.80 2,279.37
12800 128.00
531717 4,707.34
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Eaflng Per SharelEPS)

The followlng reflacts the profit and share data used In the basic and diluted EPS computations: 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Rs. {In Hundred) Rs. {in Hundred)
Net Profit £ (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders 4,91,73351 6,60,20857
Welghted average number of equity shares In caleulating EPS 11,87,520 11,87,520
Noeminal value of Equity Shares 10 10
Basic & Diluted EPS 4141 55,60

ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME

Pravision far Tax s made for current and deferred taxes.

Income tax expense is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to {tems recegnised directly In equity cr other comprehensive Income, Inwhich case It is recognised
directly in equity or other comprehensive Income,

Current Income tax for current perlod s provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be pald to or recavered from the tax autharlties, using the tax rates and tax [aws
that have baen snacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, Taxahle Income differs from profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of prefit and loss because of itemns of
Income or expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. Currant tax assets 2nd liabilities are set off and presented as net.

Deferred tax Is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrylng amounts of assets and llabilities for financlal reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used {or taxation purposes. Deferred tax Is measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted,

significant judgmant is required In determination of taxabllity of certaln Income and deductibility of cettaln expenses durlng the estimation of the provision for Income taxes,

The Compary has signlficant amount of unused tax credits, since avallabllity of future taxable Income Is pot certaln, no provision for deferred tax assets has been made under IND A5 12 ' Income
Taxes’.

DETAILS OF OUES TO MICRO AND SMALEL ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT 2006

The Company has clreulated confirmation for the Idantification of suppliers registered under the Micra, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006. On the basis of Information avallable
with the Cempany under the aforesald Act, there are no Enterprises to whom the Company owes duas which are outstanding at year end. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

The Company's actlvities durlng the year were [imited ta Investment Actlvities and sccordingly no separate disclosure Is required In terms of Indlan Accounting Standard 108, 'Operating Segments’,

20 The outhreak ef COVID-19 pandemic glchally Is Ing a slawdown of ecopomic activity. In many tauntrles, busihesses are being forced to craze or limit thelr apertlons for fong or Indedlnite

period of time, Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, Including trave] bans, quarantines, socfal distancing and closures of non-essentlal services have triggered disruptions to businesses
wortldwide, resulting In an economie slowdown and uncertainties pertalning to future operatlons, The Company has considered the possible effects on its business that may result from COVID-29 on
the carrying amount of recelvables, other investments and financing made by the Company a5 on the reporting date and income to be accrued thereupon in coming years. Based on assumptions
and current estimates [n view of the pandemic, the Company expects that the carrying of recelvables and other In will ba recovered In due course of time., Alse, there Is no
materlal uncertainty on the abllity of the Company to continue as a golng concern and there Is no materlal event/ circumstances due to COVID+19 as on the date of approval of the Financial
Statement that requires separate adjustment or disclesure.

Related Party Disclosures
As pet Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, the disclasure of transactions with related partles are given betow:

Names of the related parties and deseription of relatlonship

1, Key Management Personnel (KMP) and thelr relatives

Mrs. Avantlka Gupta Director
Mr. Rafiv Agarwal Director
Mr. Dinesh Parakh Dlrector
Mr, Ankit Saraiya Relative of Director
Mr. P. P. Gupta Relative of Director

Detalls of Related Party Transzctions during the year ended 315t March 2022 and balance sutstznding as at 31st March 2022:

KMP & Relatives of KMP
2021-22 2020-21
Transactions;
Rent received - -
On the basls of physical verification of assets and cash generation capacity of thase sssets, in the £ perception, there Is no Impal t of assets as on 313t March, 2022,

Additlonsl Regulatory Infarmation
No transactions to report for the followlng disclasure requitements as notlfled by MCAp ntto ded Schedule liifor
a) Crypto ar Virtual Currency
b} Benaml Property held under Benaml transactions {Prohibition ) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988])
c) Loans and Advances repayable on demand ar without speclfying any terms or perlod of repayment to specified persons
d} Undisclosed [ncome
€] Registration of Charges and satisfactlon of Charges
1) Any advancement of fund thraugh Intermediary for other beneficlarles.
g} any transactions with companles struck off under Section 248 of the companles Act, 2013 or section 560 of
h} Relating to borrowed funds
Li) Wilful defaulter
(i) Utllisation of borrowed fund and share premlum
{iit) Discrepancy In utllisation of borrowlngs
{iv} Current maturity of long term borrowings




24, Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Year Previous Year % Variance Reason for variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 73.66 49.17 49.80|Increase in current
- Investment
Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity NA NA NA
Debt service coverage ratio |Earning for Debt Service = Net|Debt service = Interest & NA NA NA
Profit after taxes + Non-cash |Lease Payments +
operating Principal Repayments
expenses like depreciation
and other amortizations +
Interest + other
adjustments like loss on sale
of Fixed assets etc.
Return on equity ratio Net Profits after taxes — Average Shareholder’s 0.10 0.16 -34.35]/Decrease in net profit.
Preference Dividend (if any} |Equity
Inventory turnover ratio Net sales Average inventory NA NA NA
=(Opening + Closing
balance / 2)
Trade receivables turnover |Net sales Average trade debtors = NA NA NA
ratio {Opening + Closing
balance / 2}
Trade payables turnover  |Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables NA NA NA
ratio
Net capital turnover ratio  |Net Sales Working Capital = current NA NA NA
assets minus current
liabilities.
Net profit ratio Net profit after tax Net Sales NA NA NA
Return on capital employed|Earning before interestand  Capital Employed = 013 0.19 -35.21|Decrease In net profit,
taxes Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred Tax
Liability
Return on Investment Income Generated from Average Invested Funds 0.01 0.02 -30.43

Invested Fund




Firanclal Instrument and Related Disclosure
Falr Value of Financial Assets and Financial Uabllitles with Fair Value Hierarchy

As at 31st March, 2022
Financtal assots and financlal llabilities at falr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Amortised Cost Total

Ffinancial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

- Investments 14,77,474.89 - - - 14,77,474.83
Financial assets at FVTOC

- Investments 3,62,35,542.74 41,21,106.06 - - 4,03,60,644.80
Financial assets at Amartised cost

~ Cash & Cash Equivalents - - - 11,524.63 11,524.63
= Bank Balances other than above - - - - .
~loans . - - . -

= Trade Recelvables - - - - .

- Investments - - - - .

= Other Flnancia) Assets - - - 1,01,21731 1,01,217.31
Total Financtal assets 3,77,17,017.63 41,21,106.06 - 1,12,741.94 4,19,50,865.63

Financial Uabilitles
Financial Liabilitfes at Amortised Cost

- Borrowings - . - - -
-Trade payables - - - - .
= Other Financial Labllitles - - - - -
Tatal Financial Uabllities - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021

FInancial assets and financlal llabllitles at falr value Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Amortised Cost Total

Financial assets
Flnanclal assets at FVTPL

- Investments 9,81,334.94 - - - 9,81,324,94
FInancial assets at FVTQC)

» Investments 4,48,01,134.50 40,17,473.07 - - 4,88,18,602.57
Financlal assets at Amortlsed cost

- Cash & Cash Equlvalents . - - 10,016.05 10,016.05
=Lloans . - - - -
«Trade Recelvables - - - 5,151.00 5,191.00
~Investments - - . . -

= Other Financlal Assets - - - 1,01,000.00 1,01,000.00
Total Finandal assets 4,57,82,469.44 40,17,473.07 - 15,207.05 4,99,16,149.56

Financial Uabllitles
Financial Uabliltics at Amortised Cost

- Borcowings . - - . -
= Trade payables - - - - -
= Qther Financlal Lizbilitles - - . . -
Total Financlal Uabillties - - - - -

FInanclat Risk Management

The Company’s activitles expose It to a varlety of financial tlsks, including market risk, credit risk and lguidity risk. The & 1o focus on a system-based approach to business risk
management, The Company’s financlal risk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluatlon and effecti 4 1t of key risks facing the business, Backed by strong
Internal control systems, the current Risk Management System rests on policles and procedures kssued by appropriate autherities; process of regular revisws / audits to set appropriate ¢sk limits
and controls; menltoring of such risks and compllance confirmation for the same.




{it Mlrket Risk

Market risk Is the risk of any loss In futura earings, In realisable falr values or In future cash flows that may result from a change In the price of a fAnancial Enstrument. The value of a finanzlal

=" .. lnftrument may change 38 3 tesult of charges In [nterest rates, forelgn currency exchange rates, equity price fluztuations, liquidity and other market changes, Future specific market mevements

)

cannot be normally predicted with reasonakble accuracy.

Foreign currency risk
Forelgn currency flsk is the rlsk that the falr value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates, Currently the Company does not have any foreign

curfency exposure.

Interest rate rlsk
The main buslness of the Company Is trading In goods, shares and securities, These actlvitles expose us to Interest rate 7lsk,

Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is related to change In market reference price of investments and stacks In cquity securities held by the Company,

Liquidity Rlsk

Liquldity risk 1s the risk than an entity will encaunter difficulty [n meeting obligation assetisted with financlal liabllitles that are settled by delivering cash or other financlal assets, The Campany
mitigates its liquldity risks by ensuring timely collections of 1ts recetvables and close monltoring of Its credit cycle.

The Company does not have any financtal llabilities at the reporting date,

{il) Credit Risk

Credit 115k Is the risk of financfal loss arising from counter-party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligations. Credic risk encompasses both the direct risk of
default and the ritk of deterloration af eredit worthiness as well as cancenteation rigks,

{iv] Expected Credit Loss

26 Previous year figures have been reclassified wherever appropriate to confinm to current year's presentation.

Ind AS 109 outllnes a 'three stages’ model far Impairment based on changes In credit quallty since Initla! recognition as summarlzed below. The objective of the Impalrment requirements Is to
recognize life time expected credit loss (ECLs) on all financial instrument for which there have been sigalficant increases in eredit risk since Initial recognition — whether assessad on an Individual or
collective basls,

At the reporting date, an alfowance {or provision for loan and advances) Is required on stage 1 assets at 12 month ECLs. If the credit risk has sfgnificantly increased since initfal recognition (Stage 1),
an allowance [or provision) should be recognised for the lifetime ECLs for financlal Instruments for which the eradit risk has Increased signifizantly since Inltial recognition {Stage 2) or which are
eredit Impaired {Stage 3).

The measurement of ECLIs caleulated using three main components:

Probabllity of default represents the likelihaod of a borrower defaulting on Its financlal obligation elther aver the next 12 manths {12M PD) or over the remalning lifetime {Lifetime PD) of the
chligation.

Exposure at Default {EAD] is the total amount of an asset the entity Is expased to at the time of default, EAD s define based on the charagteristics of the asscts, EAD Is dependent on the
outstanding exposure of an assets sanctioned amount of loan and eredit conversion factor for nan-funded exposure,

Loan Glven Default {LGD) It Is part of an assets which Is lost provided tha assets dafault. Tha recovery rate Is derlve as a ratio of discounted value of recavery cash Mlow {Incorparating the recavery
time} ta tatal exposure of amount at the time of default.

.

The Company assesses when a significant Increase In credlt rlsk has occurred based on quantitative and qualltative ranits, Exg are d 1o have resulted In a significant inctease
Incredit risk and are moved to Stage 2 whem

1. Quantitative test: Accounts that are 30 calendar days or more past due move to Stage 2 automatically. Accounts that are 90 calandar days or more past dus move to Stage 3 automatleally.

1l. Qualitative test: Accounts that meet the portfollo’s ‘high rlsk” criteria and are subject to closer eredit monitoring. High risk customers may net be in arrears but elther through an event or an
abserved behaviour exhibit credit distress,

fil. Reversal in Stages: Exposures wlll move back to Stage 2 or Stage 1 respectively, once they no langer meet the quantitative criteria set out abave, For expesures classifled using the qualltative
test, when they no longer meet the erlterla for a signiflcant Increase In eredit risk and when any cure criterla used for credit rlsk management are met,

The definitlon of default for the purpase of determining ECLs has been aligned to the RBI definitian of default, which considers indicators that the debtar Is unlikely to pay and Is no later than when
the exposure is mare than 90 days past due.

As per ottr report of even date For aqd an behalf of the Board
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